
MEETING: Overview and Scrutiny Committee
DATE: Tuesday, 29 January 2019
TIME: 2.00 pm
VENUE: Council Chamber, Barnsley Town Hall

AGENDA

Administrative and Governance Issues for the Committee

1  Apologies for Absence - Parent Governor Representatives  

To receive apologies for absence in accordance with Regulation 7 (6) of the 
Parent Governor Representatives (England) Regulations 2001.

2  Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interest  

To invite Members of the Committee to make any declarations of pecuniary and 
non-pecuniary interest in connection with the items on this agenda.

3  Minutes of the Previous Meeting  (Pages 3 - 8)

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting of the Committee held on 8th 
January, 2019 (Item 3 attached).

Overview and Scrutiny Issues for the Committee

4  Provisional Education Outcomes for Children & Young People in Barnsley 
2018  (Pages 9 - 30)

To consider a report of the Executive Director Core Services and the Executive 
Director People (Item 4 attached) in respect of the Provisional Education 
Outcomes for Children & Young People in Barnsley 2018 from Foundation Stage 
to Key Stage 5.

Enquiries to Anna Marshall, Scrutiny Officer

Email scrutiny@barnsley.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

mailto:scrutiny@barnsley.gov.uk


To: Chair and Members of Overview and Scrutiny Committee:-

Councillors Ennis OBE (Chair), Bowler, G. Carr, Charlesworth, Clarke, Clements, 
Franklin, Frost, Gollick, Daniel Griffin, Hampson, Hand-Davis, Hayward, 
W. Johnson, Makinson, Mitchell, Murray, Phillips, Pickering, Pourali, Sheard, 
Sixsmith MBE, Tattersall, Williams, Wilson and Wright together with co-opted 
Members Ms P. Gould and Statutory Co-opted Member Ms K. Morritt (Parent 
Governor Representative)

Electronic Copies Circulated for Information
Diana Terris, Chief Executive
Andrew Frosdick, Executive Director Core Services
Rob Winter, Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management
Michael Potter, Service Director, Business Improvement and Communications
Ian Turner, Service Director, Council Governance
Press

Witnesses
Item 4 - 2.00pm
Nick Bowen, Principal of Horizon Community College and Joint Chair of Barnsley 
Schools’ Alliance Board
Margaret Libreri, Service Director, Education, Early Start and Prevention, People 
Directorate, BMBC
Richard Lynch, Head of Barnsley Schools’ Alliance, People Directorate, BMBC
Liz Gibson, Virtual School Headteacher for Looked After Children (LAC), People 
Directorate, BMBC
Councillor Sarah Tattersall, Cabinet Support Member for People (Achieving 
Potential)



MEETING: Overview and Scrutiny Committee
DATE: Tuesday, 8 January 2019
TIME: 2.00 pm
VENUE: Council Chamber, Barnsley Town Hall

1

MINUTES 

Present Councillors Ennis OBE (Chair), Bowler, G. Carr, 
Charlesworth, Clements, Franklin, Gollick, 
Daniel Griffin, Hampson, Hand-Davis, Hayward, 
W. Johnson, Makinson, Mitchell, Pourali, Sheard, 
Tattersall, Williams, Wilson and Wright together with 
co-opted member Ms P. Gould.

39 Apologies for Absence - Parent Governor Representatives 

Apologies for absence were received from Kate Morritt in accordance with Regulation 
7(6) of the Parent Governor Representatives (England) Regulations 2001.

40 Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interest 

There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest.

41 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 

The minutes of the meeting held on 27th November 2018 were approved as a true 
and accurate record subject to a minor amendment to reflect that a task and finish 
group is to be arranged to look at redevelopment plans in more detail, not a briefing 
meeting.  The meeting noted advice from the Executive Director (Core Services) that 
the constitutional arrangements did not allow a further task and finish group to be 
arranged. 

42 Neglect Strategy 

The following representatives were welcomed to the meeting:

Mel John-Ross, Service Director – Children’s Social Care & Safeguarding, BMBC
Deborah Mercer, Head of Children & Family Social Care, BMBC
Nina Sleight, Head of Early Start, Prevention & Sufficiency, BMBC
Laura Hammerton, Family Centre Development Manager, BMBC
Alicia Marcroft, Head of Public Health, BMBC
Julie Keen, Social Worker, BMBC
Alison Wilkinson, Social Worker, BMBC
Angela Fawcett, Designated Nurse Safeguarding Children and Looked After 
Children, NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)
Cllr Margaret Bruff, Cabinet Spokesperson for People, BMBC

Deborah Mercer introduced this item, explaining that the Neglect Strategy ‘Neglect 
Matters’ has been developed by safeguarding professionals in partnership with the 

Page 3



2

NSPCC and provided an update on the progress made since the implementation of 
the strategy as well as the future plans in relation to this area of work.

In the ensuing discussion, and in response to detailed questioning and challenge, the 
following matters were highlighted:

Effective consultation took place with the NSPCC, the Equality Forum and Children, 
Young People and Families prior to the launch of the strategy as neglect is 
everybody’s business.  The voice of the child is always captured so that their 
experience of living with difficult circumstances and possible neglect is at the 
forefront of the assessment and any intervention.  Each child is spoken to 
individually.  

Barnsley has adopted the use of the Graded Care Profile version 2 (GCP2), which 
was developed by a GP, to support the assessment of neglect experienced by a child 
or within a family.  The tool uses a ‘traffic light’ system looking at a wide range of 
topics such as quality and quantity of food, cleanliness of the home and general 
appearance.  If an assessment comes back as 'red' this is passed on to social care 
for action.  'Amber’ and ‘green’ cases are passed on to Early Help or universal 
services.  The tool also identifies qualitative outcomes (which are continually 
measured) such as duration of help, length of time children are in receipt of services 
and how entrenched long term neglect cases are handled to prevent re-referral.  The 
multi-agency Neglect Sub-group is continually checking and further developing 
outcomes.  

In terms of communities, work is ongoing with families through the Early Help offer 
delivered in Family Centres to address neglect using a strength based approach, not 
punitive measures.  Barnsley is fortunate to have strong communities where this 
approach works well.  In addition, BMBC has worked with Rowlands Pharmacy who 
have promoted the neglect strategy in local chemist shops.  Councillors and Area 
Councils can help to spread the message through using their knowledge of their local 
communities to share understanding of the impact of neglect and use of the strength 
based approach.  Neglect is a complex multi-generational problem, encompassing 
poor education, family/parenting, isolation, domestic violence, substance misuse and 
mental health.  Poor mental health can have a significant impact on parenting.

There is a need to develop open and honest relationships with families so that they 
are able to disclose what is happening within the family and to enable correct support 
to be put in place to help them.  Lots of promotional activity takes place in family 
centres, such as tooth brushing clubs etc. so that people are able to recognise when 
they need help.   

There is a rolling programme of training to ensure the message is spread far and 
wide.  Training is always well attended.  To date 400 professionals have been trained 
to use the GCP2 tool and to understand the impact of neglect.  Schools are involved 
in continuous promotion and there are champions in all agencies.  The GCP2 
enables parents and carers to see what is working well and what needs to change in 
a non-punitive way.  

It was highlighted that there is a correlation between poverty, deprivation and 
likelihood of neglect.  Work takes place with the family to look holistically at 
circumstances and possible root causes of neglect, which are often complex and can 

Page 4



3

include income, benefits, housing situation, work readiness, parenting skills and 
budget management.  Plans developed alongside the family to address such issues 
can lead to a real positive impact on the daily experience of children within their 
families and long term positive outcomes.  

The report highlighted that there has been an increase of 33% in the numbers of 
children subject to a Care Protection Plan (CPP) due to neglect.  The numbers of 
care proceedings where the primary issue is neglect have also increased.  It was 
pointed out that this is not necessarily a bad thing, as the Neglect Strategy has a role 
to promote identification of the need for Early Help so it was expected that numbers 
would increase initially but that once early help is put in place the number of children 
taken into care will reduce because cases are picked up earlier and dealt with at an 
early stage.  

Each organisation is responsible for carrying out its own assessments (although joint 
assessments also take place) and identifying champions and trainers.  In family 
centres, support workers have regular supervision and their work is overseen by a 
Manager as part of the team around the family.  South Yorkshire Police treat cases of 
neglect as seriously as those relating to physical or sexual harm to children and joint 
investigations are carried out.  If there is evidence of extreme neglect, criminal 
charges may be brought.  

In terms of ‘hidden’ neglect – for example, within middle class families where there 
are no obvious signs of potential neglect, the holistic assessment using the GCP2 will 
also look at things like controlling behaviour, emotional neglect, attachment, ‘cold’ 
parenting and chastisement.  The child who is subject to assessment is always seen 
alone and will also be observed in various settings (including education) so that a full 
picture of the child’s life can be captured and a plan put in place to address identified 
issues

No additional resources are needed to tackle neglect as work is underway with 
families anyway.  If parents don’t engage and don’t consent to social care 
involvement where this is deemed necessary, child protection proceedings may 
commence.  However, this is rare as parents often understand what is happening 
and social workers are persistent and work through other family members and other 
professionals such as Health Visitors.  Berneslai Homes in particular are a strong 
advocate for the neglect strategy and use the GCP2.  Parents are often receptive to 
Early Help services as they recognise they need help.  Cases are closed when 
progress has been made and all actions within the plan completed.  

RESOLVED that:  

(i) Members note the report, 

(ii) Witnesses be thanked for their attendance and contribution, and 

(iii) An All Member Information brief to be arranged regarding the Graded Care 
Profile and associated thresholds.

43 Exclusion of the Public and Press 

Page 5



4

RESOLVED that the public and press be excluded from the meeting during the 
consideration of the following item because of the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as described by the specific paragraphs of Part I of the Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) as follows:

Item Number Type of information likely to be disclosed
23 Paragraph 1

 

44 Barnsley SEND and Out of Borough Placements 

The Following witnesses were welcomed to the meeting:
  
Margaret Libreri, Service Director – Education, Early Start & Prevention, BMBC
Councillor Sarah Tattersall, Cabinet Support Member for People (Achieving 
Potential)
Richard Lynch, Head of Barnsley Schools Alliance, BMBC

The Service Director introduced the report and provided an overview of the current 
population of children and young people with Special Educational Needs and 
Disabilities (SEND) in Barnsley against the national and local context.

It was reported that there is an upwards trajectory of requests for assessments, in 
line with national trends.  This is due to many contributing factors.    

In Barnsley the absence rate for children with an EHCP is lower than national, but for 
children at SEN support stage it is almost 1% higher than the national average, which 
is a cause for concern as those in need of support are more likely to be absent or 
disengage from school.  School attendance for children and young people with SEND 
is a challenge.  Under the new system the age range for children and young people 
with SEND has been extended from 0 – 25, which is well beyond school age.  More 
children with SEND are now being identified in primary school and often before 
children enter formal education.  Developmental delays can be identified at the 
mandatory 2 ½ year old check. The role of family centres has changed along with a 
change in funding and a change in the process for assessment.  

A discussion took place regarding school exclusions and the level of monitoring of 
day to day practice.  Members were reassured that when a concern is raised this is 
always followed up and this is something which Ofsted is increasingly focussing on.  
In terms of Elective Home Education (EHE)  many schools are now trying to actively 
discourage this and to give parents a ‘cooling off’ period.

With regard to specialist out of authority placements for Barnsley children and young 
people with SEND, Members felt that opportunities to provide such placements in 
Barnsley should be explored.   However, because of the low numbers of children and 
young people placed out of authority, this would not be financially viable.  Similarly, 
the number of children with SEND from other authorities who are placed in Barnsley 
is very small.  

Page 6



5

The process for providing information and supporting parental preference in choice of 
schools was explained for the benefit of Members, together with information about 
the Placement Sufficiency Strategy.  The EHCP team helps to guide parents through 
the process.  There is a SEND Improvement Programme and update report which 
identifies priorities on the basis of performance data and feedback from partners and 
service users.  This will be shared with Members.   

RESOLVED that 

(i) The report be noted;

(ii) Witnesses be thanked for their attendance and contribution;

(iii) Councillor Daniel Griffin to provide evidence to the service regarding his 
concerns on practices in schools;

(iv)Service to provide the Committee with a copy of their Service Improvement 
Plan;

(v) Service to provide the Key Stage 4 Progress 8 scores to the committee;

(vi)Service to report back to the committee on how they challenge exclusions in 
the Borough and how this is then deal with, and

(vii) Service to report back to the committee as to what data is available 
regarding off-rolling in Barnsley schools.

45 Children's Social Care Performance 

The Following witnesses were welcomed to the meeting:  

Mel John-Ross, Service Director, Children’s Social Care & Safeguarding, BMBC
Cllr Margaret Bruff, Cabinet Spokesperson – People (safeguarding)

The Service Director introduced this item and gave an overview of performance 
indicators for children’s safeguarding and social care up to the end of November 
2018.  It was reported that although there are no significant changes and 
performance remains good across children’s social care, there are some seasonal 
and monthly fluctuations.  Barnsley’s rating for adoption is ‘outstanding’ but there is 
always more to do.  

A Member was concerned that there has been a rise in the number of children who 
are subject to a child protection plan.  Members were reassured that this is still within 
acceptable levels and may be due to the Neglect Strategy raising awareness of what 
constitutes neglect.  Levels will continue to be closely monitored.

The recent Ofsted inspection was incredibly positive across all areas and highlighted 
the significant progress that had been made in Barnsley.  Thanks were expressed to 
Elected Members for their support and respectful challenge.  The Inspectors made 
recommendations around contextual safeguarding, employment and education for 
care leavers, timeliness of child protection conferences and work with neighbouring 

Page 7



6

authorities on children missing from care.  An all member seminar on contextual 
safeguarding is planned to take place after the local elections in May.

RESOLVED that:  

(i) Members note the report, and

(ii) Witnesses be thanked for their attendance and contribution.

Page 8



1

Report of the Executive Director Core Services 
and the Executive Director People, 

to the Overview & Scrutiny  Committee (OSC)
on 29th January 2019

Provisional Education Outcomes for Children & Young People in Barnsley 2018:
Foundation Stage to Key Stage 5

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 This report outlines the validated education outcomes for children and young people in 
Barnsley, broken down by pupil group, from assessments taken in 2018. The report provides an 
overview from the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) (age 4/5) to Key Stage (KS) 5 (A-
Level), including comparisons where possible.

1.2 The report includes results for all state-funded primary and secondary schools in Barnsley.  

1.3 In addition, it provides an initial picture of the statutory outcomes for 2018 of children placed in 
Barnsley’s Corporate Care and featured in the Statistical First Release (SFR) cohort for the 
academic year September 2017 to July 2018. 

2.0 Background

2.1 The table below shows the current profile of schools in the Barnsley area.

Local Education 
Authority (LEA) 

Maintained schools

Academies Total

Primary 39 39 78
Secondary 3 7 10
Special 0 2 2
Pupil Referral Unit 0 1 1
Total 42 49 91*

*There are actually 90 state-funded schools in Barnsley, however, as Holy Trinity is an all-
through 3-16 academy it is counted here as two settings, one primary, one secondary.

2.2 Of the three maintained secondary schools, two are in the process of conversion to academy.

2.3 Of the 39 maintained primary schools, four are in the process of conversion or governing bodies 
have resolved to pursue conversion.

2.4 There are 14 Multi-Academy Trusts working in Barnsley.

2.5 In addition to primary and secondary schools, there are two main providers of post 16 / Key 
Stage 5 provision, Barnsley College and Penistone Grammar School. Both providers are 
included in the data for KS5.

3.0 Highlights of Outcomes for 2018

3.1 For children in EYFS the percentage of Barnsley children achieving a Good Level of 
Development (GLD) continues to improve and the percentage of schools at or above national 
averages has improved by 2% points. 

Page 9

Item 4



2

3.2 The percentage of children at the end of primary school (Key Stage 2) achieving the expected 
levels in all three subject areas of reading, writing and maths has increased from 59% to 64%.  
The rate of improvement locally was double that seen nationally, and Barnsley now equals 
national performance.

3.3 Progress rates for pupils between Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2 remain above national 
averages in writing and maths, and have improved in reading, narrowing the gap with national 
figures.

3.4 Outcomes for pupils with Special Educational Needs & Disability (SEND) have improved at all 
key stages.

3.5 At Key Stage 4, the percentage of Barnsley students  achieving  a grade 4 or better (equivalent 
to a C grade) in both English language/literature and maths was 61% compared with 59% 
nationally, which means Barnsley remains above national on this measure.

4.0 Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) (5 year olds) Outcomes 

4.1 The key measure in EYFS is the percentage of children achieving a Good Level of 
Development (GLD).

4.2 The percentage of pupils reaching a Good Level of Development (GLD) in Barnsley has 
increased from 69% in 2017 to 70% in 2018.  National results have improved from 71% to 72% 
so the Barnsley/national gap has remained at 2% points in 2018.

4.3 58% of Barnsley schools achieved a GLD broadly in line with or above the national average, 
compared with 56% in 2017. 

4.4 As illustrated in the graph below, girls continue to do better than boys overall.  Performance for 
most groups of children has improved since 2017, with the exception of non-disadvantaged 
pupils which remained static. SEN pupils with an Education, Health & Care Plan (EHCP) 
showed greatest improvement with an increase of 10% points.

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

All Pupils Male FemaleDisadvantaged

Non 
Disad
vanta
ged

SEN EHC Plan SEN 
Support

No 
SEN English

Other 
than 

English

2017 69% 59% 78% 53% 73% 18% 3% 21% 73% 70% 54%
2018 70% 62% 78% 60% 73% 21% 13% 22% 75% 71% 62%

2017 2018

EYFS - %  Achieving a Good Level of Development

Page 10



3

4.5 Barnsley remains below Rotherham (73%) and Doncaster (71%) but now equals Sheffield 
(70%) for GLD and has once again improved at a greater rate than these authorities between 
2017 and 2018.

5.0 Key Stage 1 (KS1) (6-7 years) Outcomes 

Year 1 Phonics

5.1 At the end of year 1, children are assessed on their phonics knowledge.  The gap between 
results for Barnsley children and national performance narrowed slightly but when rounded 
remained at 3% points in 2018. In Barnsley 80% of children are working at the expected 
standard, compared with 83% nationally.

5.2 Outcomes for all pupil groups improved in 2018. 

5.3 Girls and disadvantaged pupils saw a 3% point increase whilst SEN pupils with an EHCP 
increased by 2% points and SEN support pupils increased by 1% point.

5.4 In 2018, 55% of Barnsley schools were broadly in line with or above the national average, 
compared with 56% in 2016. 

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

All 
Pupils Male FemaleDisadvantaged

Non 
Disa
dva
ntag
ed

SEN EHC 
Plan

SEN 
Support

No 
SEN English

Other 
than 

English

2017 78% 73% 84% 65% 83% 37% 20% 40% 85% 78% 76%
2018 80% 74% 86% 67% 85% 38% 22% 41% 86% 80% 82%

2017 2018

Year 1 Phonics - % Achieving the Expected Standard

5.5 In comparison to other local authorities in South Yorkshire, Barnsley (80%) ranks below 
Rotherham (81%) but above Doncaster (79%) and Sheffield (79%).

KS1 Reading, Writing and Mathematics

5.6 At Key Stage 1 the gap between Barnsley (63%) and the national figure for the percentage of 
children achieving the expected standard in reading, writing and mathematics has widened, 
from 1% point in 2017 to 2% points in 2018.  SEN pupils with an EHCP saw a 6% point increase 
and SEN support pupils saw a 3% point increase.

Page 11



4

5.7 65% of Barnsley schools are broadly in line with (or above) the national average for reading, 
writing, and maths combined in comparison to 58% in 2017.

5.8 The area where Barnsley has the widest gap with national performance continues to be reading. 
The gap with national has widened from 3% points in 2017 to 4% points in 2018 for pupils 
operating at expected standard, but has narrowed from 5% points to 4% points for the 
percentage operating at greater depth.  In writing and maths the gaps are slightly narrower, at 
3% points for children working at expected standard in writing and 2% points below in maths, 
and 2% points below in both subjects for children working at greater depth.

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%

All Pupils Male FemaleDisadvantaged

Non 
Disadv
antag

ed

SEN EHC Plan SEN 
Support

No 
SEN English

Other 
than 

English

2017 63% 57% 70% 51% 68% 14% 3% 16% 71% 63% 52%
2018 63% 56% 71% 48% 70% 17% 9% 19% 73% 64% 56%

2017 2018

KS1 - % Achieving Expected Standard in Reading, Writing & 
Mathematics

5.9 With 72% achieving the expected standard in reading, Barnsley ranks equal with Doncaster 
(72%) and Sheffield (72%) but below Rotherham (73%).  In writing Barnsley, at 67%, ranks 
below Rotherham (70%), Doncaster (69%) and Sheffield (68%) at the expected standard whilst 
in maths, Barnsley, at 75% ranks equal to Doncaster and Rotherham and above Sheffield 
(74%) at the expected standard.

6.0 Key Stage 2 (KS2) (11 year olds) Outcomes

6.1 The percentage of children achieving the expected standard across all three subjects of 
reading, writing and maths is equal to national, having increased from 59% in 2017 to 64% in 
2018, more than double the increase seen nationally of just 2% points.  For children working at 
the higher standard, or in greater depth, the gap has narrowed from 2% points to 1% point.

6.2 As at Key Stage 1 the widest gap between Barnsley and national performance is once again in 
reading, however the gap has narrowed from 4% points for children achieving the expected 
standard in 2017 to 2% points in 2018.  The gap has also narrowed at the higher standard from 
6% points in 2017 to 4% points in 2018. In contrast, outcomes at the expected standard in 
writing and maths were 1% point above national.  The gap with national widened from 1% point 
to 2% points for greater depth in writing in 2018 but narrowed from 4% points below national in 
maths in 2017 to just 1% point below in 2018.

Page 12



5

6.3 Within Barnsley the performance of all groups of pupils has improved for the expected standard 
in reading, writing and maths. 

6.4 Boys and SEN pupils with an EHCP increased by 5% points between 2017 and 2018.

6.5 Attainment in reading, writing and maths in Barnsley (64%) is higher than Doncaster (60%), 
Rotherham (61%) and Sheffield (62%).

6.6 Rates of progress from Key Stage 1 to Key Stage 2 are once again significantly above the 
national average of 0.0 in writing at +0.44 and maths at +0.64.  In reading, however, progress 
rates in Barnsley are lower than national, at -0.05 but unlike in 2017, they are not significantly 
different to national. 

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%

All Pupils Male FemaleDisadvantaged

Non 
Disad
vanta
ged

SEN EHC Plan SEN 
Support

No 
SEN English

Other 
than 

English

2017 59% 55% 64% 45% 68% 16% 9% 17% 69% 60% 50%
2018 64% 60% 69% 49% 72% 20% 14% 21% 73% 65% 50%

2017 2018

KS2 - % Achieving Expected Standard in Reading, Writing and 
Mathematics

7.0 Key Stage 4 (GCSE) Outcomes

7.1 Previously the key performance measure at Key Stage 4 was the percentage of students 
achieving 5 A*-C grades, including English and maths.  This measure is no longer reported on.  
The significant performance measures now are Attainment 8, measuring students’ attainment 
across a basket of 8 qualifications, and Progress 8, which measures the average progress of 
each school’s students against their attainment levels at the end of primary school.  A progress 
score of 0 means that the progress students have made is, on average, in line with what is 
expected, given their starting points.  A score greater than zero means students, on average, 
have made better than expected progress, and a minus (-), less than expected progress.

7.2 Another change to measures at GCSE is a switch from reporting grades as letters (e.g. A-C) to 
reporting as numbers, with grades ranging from 1-9, with a 9 indicating the highest grade 
possible.  Within the number grading system a grade 4 is equivalent to a standard grade C, with 
a grade 5 equivalent to a strong C.  Thus the percentage of students achieving a grade 4 or 
higher is broadly equivalent to the old measure of grade C or higher.

7.3 We also report on the percentage of students achieving grade 4 or above (C equivalent) in both 
English language/literature and maths (referred to as ‘the basics’).

Page 13



6

Attainment 8 

7.4 The average Attainment 8 score for Barnsley pupils was 42.4 in 2018 in comparison to the 
national figure of 44.3.  Although Attainment 8 scores once again saw a decline across the 
board nationally from 2017, due to the impact of more reformed qualifications, Barnsley saw a 
greater reduction of -1.6 in comparison to -0.3 nationally, meaning that the gap with national is 
now -1.9 points.

7.5 All pupil groups saw a decrease during this time with the exception of SEN pupils with an EHCP 
who saw an increase of 1.8 points and SEN support pupils who saw an increase of 4.8 points.

7.6 Barnsley ranks 140th nationally, in comparison with 118th in 2017.  Regionally Barnsley ranks 
below Sheffield (44.5), Rotherham (43.3) and Doncaster (42.5).

0.0
10.0
20.0
30.0
40.0
50.0
60.0

All Boys GirlsDisadvantaged

Not 
Disa
dvan
tage

d

SEN (All 
SEN)

Not 
SEN Statemented SEN 

Support EAL Not EAL

2017 44.0 41.7 46.4 34.8 48.4 21.4 47.0 15.2 25.3 44.5 44.0
2018 42.4 39.1 45.7 33.7 46.6 25.3 45.0 17.0 30.1 42.5 42.3

2017 2018

KS4 - Attainment 8 Score

Progress 8

7.7 In 2018 the average Progress 8 score for Barnsley students was -0.14, a slight improvement 
from -0.15 in 2017 however it was once again significantly below the national average of 0.00.  
Barnsley’s ranking against other local authorities improved from 113th to 104th.

7.8 The progress of SEN pupils with an EHCP improved by 0.12 in 2018 whilst the progress of SEN 
support pupils improved by 0.25.

7.9 Barnsley’s Progress 8 score was below Rotherham (-0.10) and Sheffield (0.00) but above 
Doncaster at (-0.22). 

Page 14



7

-1 -0.8 -0.6 -0.4 -0.2 0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 1

All
Boys
Girls

Disadvantaged
Not Disadvantaged

SEN (All SEN)
Not SEN

Statemented
SEN Support

EAL
Not EAL

All Boys GirlsDisadvantaged

Not 
Disa
dvan
tage

d

SEN (All 
SEN)

Not 
SEN Statemented SEN 

Support EAL Not EAL

2017 -0.15 -0.35 0.05 -0.55 0.04 -0.79 -0.07 -0.87 -0.75 0.85 -0.18
2018 -0.14 -0.38 0.09 -0.50 0.02 -0.59 -0.08 -0.75 -0.50 0.63 -0.17

2018
2017

KS4 Progress 8 Score

English Language/Literature and Maths combined (The Basics)

7.10 In 2018 Barnsley improved its position further with 61% of students achieving a grade 4-9 
standard pass in both English language/literature and maths.  This is in contrast to the national 
figure which remained at 59%. Barnsley outperformed Doncaster (59%), Rotherham (59%) and 
Sheffield (60%).

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%

All Boys GirlsDisadvantaged

Not 
Disa
dvan
tage

d

SEN (All 
SEN)

Not 
SEN Statemented SEN 

Support EAL Not EAL

2017 60% 56% 64% 41% 69% 15% 66% 9% 19% 56% 60%
2018 61% 56% 66% 43% 70% 22% 67% 13% 27% 54% 61%

2017
2018

KS4 - % Basics in English and maths (4-9 standard pass) 

7.11 39% of Barnsley students achieved grade 5 or above (a strong pass) in comparison to the 2018 
national average of 40% which puts Barnsley above Doncaster (37%) and Rotherham (37%) 
but below Sheffield (40%). 
       

Page 15



8

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

All Boys GirlsDisadvantaged

Not 
Disa
dvan
tage

d

SEN (All 
SEN)

Not 
SEN Statemented SEN 

Support EAL Not EAL

2017 39% 36% 42% 22% 47% 5% 43% 3% 6% 30% 39%
2018 39% 34% 44% 23% 47% 12% 43% 2% 17% 32% 39%

2017
2018

KS4 - % Basics in English and maths (5-9 strong pass)

8.0 Key Stage 5 (Post 16 Education) Outcomes

8.1 The Average Point Score per Entry for all Level 3 Qualifications (A level or equivalent) 
decreased in Barnsley from 31.38 in 2017 to 29.25 in 2018.  Barnsley is now -3.63 points below 
the national figure of 32.88.

8.2 Sheffield, at 31.36, performed better than Barnsley, as did Rotherham (29.75) and Doncaster 
(30.19).

8.3 However Barnsley improved its Average Point Score per Entry for A level subjects only from 
27.59 to 30.27 and the average grade improved from C- to C.   Nationally the average grade 
remained at C+.

8.4 Barnsley ranked below Sheffield (32.01) but above Rotherham (29.23) and Doncaster (30.07).

8.5 For the percentage of students achieving 3 or more of the higher A* to A grades Barnsley 
performance improved from 5% to 9%.  Nevertheless Barnsley’s performance remains below 
the national figure of 13% for this measure.  It also performs below Sheffield (13%) equal to 
Doncaster (9%) but above Rotherham (5%).

8.6 Barnsley increased from 4% in 2017 to 12% in 2018 for the students achieving an AAB 
combination of grades (including 2 ‘facilitating’ subjects such as history, geography or physics) 
but remains below the national percentage of 16% (reduced from 17.0% in 2017).  Although we 
also remained below Sheffield (16%) we outperformed Rotherham (8%) and Doncaster (11%).

8.7 A highlight of post 16 provision locally is the A Level Points Score (ALPS) grade 1 attained by 
Penistone Grammar School.  This identifies its sixth form as one of the highest performing in the 
country in 2018, on the basis of progress made by students.

9.0   Outcomes for Children in Care

9.1 This provides an initial picture of the statutory outcomes for 2018 of children placed in 
Barnsley’s Corporate Care and featured in the Statistical First Release (SFR) cohort for the 
academic year September 2017 to July 2018. The report also provides a comparator with the 
results for the previous academic year. More detailed analysis will be undertaken following the 
Department for Education (DfE) publication of the CLA (Children Looked After) SFR data 
release.   

Page 16



9

9.2 The key definitions used in the tables below are:-

Whole cohort: Refers to the cohort of all pupils looked after by Barnsley at the end of the 
2017/18 academic year in each year group.

SFR cohort: Refers to the cohort of all pupils looked after by Barnsley on 31st March 2017 
having been in care continuously for the previous 12 months in each group. This cohort is used 
in the national statistics published in documents entitled Statistical First Releases (SFR). This 
cohort is the one that should be used when comparing Barnsley with the performance of 
looked after children nationally.

9.3 Statutory Outcomes Primary: Early Years Foundation Stage – Looked After Children (LAC)

Whole Cohort - FS2 
children in care July 
2018 

Gender Setting SEN

16 Boys Girls BMBC OOA SEN SEN with 
S/EHCP 

Number 9 7 14 2 6 0
Percentage 56% 44% 87% 13% 38% 0%
Statistical first 
release cohort
11 (including 5 no 
longer in care)

Boys Girls BMBC OOA SEN SEN with 
S/EHCP

Number 5 6 5 5 3 1
Percentage 45% 55% 45% 55% 27% 9%

There were 11 children in the EYFS SFR cohort.  36% (four children) achieved a good level of 
development in 2018. This compares with 20% in 2017.

9.4 Statutory Outcomes Primary:  Year 1 Phonics – Looked After Children (LAC)

Whole Cohort - Y1 
children in care 
July 2018 

Gender Setting SEN

13 Boys Girls BMBC OOA SEN SEN with 
S/EHCP 

Number 7 6 9 4 5 2
Percentage 54% 46% 69% 31% 38% 12%
Statistical first 
release cohort
8 Boys Girls BMBC OOA SEN SEN with 

S/EHCP
Number 5 3 5 3 3 2
Percentage 62% 38% 62% 38% 38% 25%

There were seven children in the Year One SFR cohort who took the phonics check.  71.5% 
passed the phonics check in 2018. This compares with 14.2% in 2017.

Page 17



10

9.5 Statutory Outcomes Primary: Key Stage One - Looked After Children (LAC)

There were 10 children in the Year Two (KS1) SFR cohort, of which:-

 40% (four children) achieved the expected standard in reading in 2018. This compares with 
28.6% in 2017. 

 40% (four children) achieved the expected standard in writing in 2018. This compares with 
28.6% in 2017. 

 40% (four children) achieved the expected standard in maths in 2018. This compares with 
42.9% in 2017.

 40% (four children) achieved the expected standard in reading writing and maths in 2018. 
This compares with 28.6% in 2017.  

9.6   Statutory Outcomes Primary: Key Stage Two – Looked After Children (LAC)

There were 17 children in the Year Six (KS2) cohort, of which:

 24% (four children) achieved the expected standard in writing in 2018.  This compares with 
45% in 2017.

 6% (one child) achieved the expected standard in reading in 2018.  This compares with 45% 
in 2017.

 24% (four children) achieved the expected standard in maths in 2018. This compares with 
45% in 2017.

 6% (one child) achieved the expected standard in reading, writing and maths in 2018. This 
compares with 40% in 2017.

Whole Cohort -  
Y2 children in 
care July 2018 

Gender Setting SEN

18 Boys Girls BMBC OOA SEN SEN with 
S/EHCP 

Number 8 10 13 3 8 2
Percentage 45% 55% 72% 38% 45% 22%
Statistical first 
release cohort
10 Boys Girls BMBC OOA SEN SEN with 

S/EHCP
Number 4 6 4 6 6 3
Percentage 40% 60% 40% 60% 60% 30%

Whole Cohort -  
Y6 children in 
care July 2018 

Gender Setting SEN

17 Boys Girls BMBC OOA SEN SEN with 
S/EHCP 

Number 14 3 16 1 12 6
Percentage 82% 18% 94% 6% 70% 35.2%
Statistical first 
release cohort
17 Boys Girls BMBC OOA SEN SEN with 

S/EHCP
Number 14 3
Percentage 82% 18% 94% 6% 70% 35.2%

Page 18



11

9.7  Contextual Review of Outcomes for Key Stage Two – Looked After Children (LAC) 

While the outcomes for EYFS, phonics and Key Stage One indicate a continuing improving 
picture, Key Stage Two results are very different from previous cohorts.  A more detailed 
analysis of individual children’s progress has been carried out, and reported to the virtual school 
governance group. This detail is not provided here as it would potentially identify individual 
children. For the majority of the cohort this shows outcomes that demonstrate positive outcomes 
for individual children, from their starting points since they entered care.  Within the Virtual 
School tracking system, progress for most children, as measured against Personal Education 
Plan targets are rated green overall.   Amber ratings have been given where results indicate a 
need to accelerate progress. The Virtual Headteacher meets with the designated teacher of the 
receiving secondary school to ensure appropriate interventions are put in place to close the 
gap. Close scrutiny of provision for these children will be undertaken as they transfer to KS3.   

10.0 Attendance

Attendance and Absence from Primary & Secondary Schools: 2017-18 Academic Year

10.1 Primary attendance for the academic year 2017/18 was 95.3%, compared with the 2016/17 
published national figure of 96.0%.  The most common reason for authorised absence was 
illness.  For unauthorised absence, the most common reason was holiday taken in term-time.

Primary Schools (years 1-6) 
Academic Year (September 
to July) 2017/18

2016/17 Published Data 2017/18 Local Data

National Barnsley All Male Female
Cohort numbers 16,795 8,599 81,96
Attendance % 96.0 95.5 95.3 95.3 95.4
Overall Absence % 4.0 4.5 4.7 4.7 4.6
Authorised Absence % 3.0 2.9 2.9 3.0 2.9
Unauthorised Absence % 1.1 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.7
Persistent Absence 10% 8.3 10.4 10.8 10.8 10.7
Authorised Reasons for 
absence (as a % of total 
absence)  
I - Illness 58.1 52.1 49.9 49.3 50.5
M - Medical 5.7 5.2 4.9 5.2 4.6
S - Study Leave 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
H - Agreed Family Holiday 2.3 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2
E - Exclusion 0.6 0.7 0.7 1.2 0.2
C - Other Authorised Absence 5.0 4.5 5.3 5.6 4.9
Unauthorised Reasons (as a 
% of total absence)  
G - Family Holiday not agreed 11.4 21.1 21.3 20.8 21.9
U - Arrived after register closed 1.8 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6
O - Other Unauthorised 
Absence 11.7 11.9 13.4 13.6 13.1

N - Reason not yet provided 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2

Sources: 2016/17 DfE SFR, 2017/18 Capita One, January School Census 2018 and Key to Success (provisional local 
data which may differ from published data)

Page 19



12

10.2 Secondary students’ attendance in the same period was 93.5%, compared with the 2016/17 
published national figure of 94.6%.  As with primary the most common reason for authorised 
absence is illness.  For unauthorised absence the most common reason given by schools is 
categorised as ‘other’.  This code tends to be used for pupils not returning after exclusions; 
pupils on reduced provision not attending their provision; or schools not authorising absences 
initially while they are awaiting medical information.

Secondary Schools (years 7 
– 11) Academic Year 
(September to July) 2017/18

2016/17 Published Data 2017/18 Local Data

National Barnsley All Male Female

Cohort numbers 12,096 6,081 6,015
Attendance % 94.6 94.0 93.5 93.4 93.6
Overall Absence % 5.4 6.0 6.5 6.6 6.4
Authorised Absence % 3.8 3.2 3.6 3.8 3.5
Unauthorised Absence % 1.5 2.8 2.9 2.8 3.0
Persistent Absence 10% 13.5 17.1 18.0 18.4 17.5
Authorised Reasons (as a % 
of total absence)  
I – Illness 53.0 34.9 36.3 35.1 37.5
M – Medical 6.4 4.2 3.7 3.3 4.1
S – Study Leave 1.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.2
H – Agreed Family Holiday 0.8 0.1 0.4 0.4 0.4
E – Exclusion 2.8 7.0 6.8 9.5 4.0
C – Other Authorised Absence 6.3 6.9 8.1 8.6 7.6
Unauthorised Reasons (as a 
% of total absence)  
G - Family Holiday not agreed 4.7 9.9 9.5 8.7 10.3
U - Arrived after register closed 1.1 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0
O - Other Unauthorised 
Absence 20.8 35.6 33.1 32.1 34.1

N - Reason not yet provided 1.7 0.2 0.8 0.8 0.7

Sources: 2016/17 DfE SFR, 2017/18 Capita One, January School Census 2018 and Key to Success (provisional local 
data which may differ from published data)

11.0 Exclusions

Permanent Exclusions from Primary Schools: 2016-17 Academic Year

11.1 The data available for exclusions relates to the 2016-17 school year.  The table below shows 
permanent exclusions in primary schools for 2016-17, including comparator information.

11.2 The permanent exclusion rate for all primary schools in Barnsley dropped by 0.01 percentage 
points in 2017 in contrast to the 0.01 percentage point increase seen nationally, regionally and 
for our Statistical Neighbour average.  This means that we once again have a lower rate than 
the England average.

11.3 Barnsley primary schools ranked 40th nationally in terms of the permanent exclusion rate for 
2017.  This is a slight improvement on 2016 but still a significant drop in comparison to 2013, 
2014 and 2015 when we were ranked the highest in England with zero permanent exclusions.  

Page 20



13

11.4 In comparison to other Local Authorities in South Yorkshire, Barnsley’s permanent exclusion 
rate was below Sheffield and Rotherham but above Doncaster.

Permanent Exclusion Rate Rank Position in comparison to All 
LAs EnglandArea

2016 2017 16/17 Diff 2016 2017
England 0.02 0.03 0.01   
Yorks & Humber 0.01 0.02 0.01   
Stat Neighbours 0.01 0.02 0.01   
Barnsley_ England Gap 0.01 -0.01    
Barnsley 0.03 0.02 -0.01 64 40
Doncaster 0.01 0.01 0.00 30 26
Durham 0.00 0.00 0.00 1 1
Halton x 0.04 x x 79
Hartlepool x 0.00 x x 1
North East Lincs 0.03 0.04 0.01 64 79
Redcar & Cleveland 0.00 x x 1 x
Rotherham 0.02 0.03 0.01 41 63
St. Helens x x x x x
Wakefield x x x x x
Wigan 0.00 0.00 0.00 1 1
Sheffield 0.04 0.03 -0.01 84 63

Fixed Term Exclusions from Primary Schools: 2016-17 Academic Year

11.5 In contrast to the picture for permanent exclusion, primary schools in Barnsley continued to 
have a fixed period exclusion rate above the England average in 2017.  The gap between 
Barnsley and England widened in 2017, going from 0.52 percentage points to 0.62 percentage 
points above national. The increase of 0.26 percentage points between 2016 and 2017 was 
greater than the increase seen nationally, regionally and for our Statistical Neighbour average.

11.6 In comparison to all other Local Authorities in England, primary schools in Barnsley were ranked 
135th in terms of the fixed period exclusion rate, a further decline on the previous years when 
we had a rank of 127 and 134.

11.7 In comparison to our Statistical Neighbours, Barnsley again had the third highest fixed period 
exclusion rate, with only Wakefield and Doncaster having a higher rate.  However, Barnsley had 
the second lowest fixed period exclusion rate in 2017 of all South Yorkshire Local Authorities 
despite our increase.

Page 21



14

Average Number of Days Lost per Excluded Primary Pupil

Days Lost per Pupil Rank
Area

2016 2017 16/17 Diff 2016 2017

England 4.10 4.21 0.11   
Yorks & Humber 4.30 4.53 0.23   
Stat Neighbours 4.84 4.23 -0.61   
Barnsley_ England Gap -0.20 0.96    
Barnsley 3.90 5.17 1.27 62 136
Doncaster 4.80 4.68 -0.12 125 122
Durham 5.30 4.54 -0.76 143 113
Halton 4.90 4.98 0.08 129 131
Hartlepool 5.40 2.58 -2.82 145 3
North East Lincs 5.20 4.26 -0.94 137 88
Redcar & Cleveland 5.70 4.29 -1.41 148 91
Rotherham 4.50 4.23 -0.27 112 84
St. Helens 3.70 3.85 0.15 35 50
Wakefield 4.40 4.49 0.09 102 110
Wigan 4.50 4.44 -0.06 112 105
Sheffield 5.20 5.08 -0.12 137 135

11.8 The average number of days lost for each excluded pupil tends to be higher in Barnsley than 
elsewhere.  Barnsley Primary Schools were ranked 136th in terms of the average number of 
days lost per excluded pupil in 2017 which is a significant decline since 2016 when we were 
ranked 62nd.

Rate of exclusions Rank
Area 2016 2017 16/17 Diff 2016 2017

England 1.21 1.37 0.16   
Yorks & Humber 1.33 1.52 0.19   
Stat Neighbours 1.23 1.41 0.17   
Barnsley_ England Gap 0.52 0.62    
Barnsley 1.73 1.99 0.26 134 135
Doncaster 1.86 2.13 0.27 140 141
Durham 1.64 1.55 -0.09 127 106
Halton 1.14 1.62 0.48 79 114
Hartlepool 0.41 0.23 -0.18 16 3
North East Lincs 1.32 1.77 0.45 97 123
Redcar & Cleveland 0.36 0.49 0.13 6 13
Rotherham 1.66 1.70 0.04 129 120
St. Helens 0.97 1.33 0.36 65 87
Wakefield 1.91 2.00 0.09 144 137
Wigan 1.07 1.25 0.18 75 78
Sheffield 2.15 2.15 0.00 148 142

Page 22



15

11.9 Our average number of days lost is now above the England average with the increase of 1.27 
being significantly higher than the increase seen nationally and regionally and in contrast to 
the decrease for our Statistical Neighbour average. 

11.10 In comparison to our Statistical Neighbours, Barnsley Primary Schools had the highest figure 
in terms of the average number of days lost per excluded pupil in 2017 and saw the greatest 
increase from 2016.

  
11.11 In comparison to other South Yorkshire Local Authorities, Barnsley had the highest outcome in 

terms of the average number of days lost per excluded pupil in 2017 and saw the highest 
increase from 2016.

Permanent Exclusions from Secondary Schools: 2016-17 Academic Year

11.12 In comparison to all Local Authorities in England, Barnsley Secondary Schools ranked 49th in 
terms of the permanent exclusion rate for 2017.  This is a further drop in comparison to 2015 
and 2016 when we were ranked 41st and 2013 when we were ranked the best in England.

11.13 The permanent exclusion rate for all Secondary Schools in Barnsley increased again in 2017.  
The increase was also greater than that seen nationally, but slightly less than the increase of 
the Statistical Neighbour average.  Regionally there was no change.

11.14 Although the permanent exclusion rate for all Secondary Schools in Barnsley is still below the 
England average the positive gap between Barnsley and England narrowed further between 
2016 and 2017, going from a difference of -0.06 percentage points to -0.04 percentage points 
below.

11.15 The increase of +0.05 percentage points between 2016 and 2017 is only exceeded by 
Hartlepool, and Halton.  In comparison to other Local Authorities in South Yorkshire, 
Barnsley’s permanent exclusion rate is below Sheffield but above Rotherham and Doncaster.

Page 23



16

Fixed Term Exclusions from Secondary Schools: 2016-17 Academic Year

11.16 The fixed period exclusion rate for all Secondary Schools in Barnsley remained significantly 
above the England average although the gap between Barnsley and England narrowed slightly 
between 2016 and 2017, going from a difference of 37.52 to 35.56 percentage points above. 

11.17 This slight decrease was in contrast to the increases seen nationally, regionally and for our 
Statistical Neighbour average.

11.18 Despite the slight improvement, in comparison to all other Local Authorities in England, 
Barnsley was ranked 150th in terms of the fixed period exclusion rate, making us once again 
one of the worst Local Authorities in the country.

11.19 In comparison to our Statistical Neighbours, Barnsley had the second highest fixed period 
exclusion rate in 2017, exceeded only by Doncaster and we were one of only five authorities to 
see a decrease.

11.20 Although Barnsley had the highest fixed period exclusion rate in 2014, 2015 and 2016 of all 
South Yorkshire Local Authorities, in 2017 Doncaster had the highest rate.

Permanent Exclusion Rate
Rank Position in 

comparison to All LAs 
EnglandArea

2016 2017 16/17 Diff 2016 2017

England 0.17 0.20 0.03   
Yorks & Humber 0.16 0.16 0.00   
Stat Neighbours 0.20 0.26 0.06   
Barnsley_ England 
Gap -0.06 -0.04    

Barnsley 0.11 0.16 0.05 41 49
Doncaster 0.02 x x 8 x
Durham 0.20 0.25 0.05 91 95
Halton 0.21 0.46 0.25 94 140
Hartlepool 0.18 0.33 0.15 81 117
North East Lincs 0.62 0.41 -0.21 149 135
Redcar & Cleveland x 0.15 x x 45
Rotherham 0.25 0.12 -0.13 113 34
St. Helens 0.00 x x 1 x
Wakefield 0.32 0.36 0.04 129 127
Wigan 0.00 0.03 0.03 1 5
Sheffield 0.30 0.34 0.04 125 119

Page 24



17

Rate of exclusions Rank 
Area

2016 2017 16/17 Diff 2016 2017

England 8.46 9.40 0.94   
Yorks & Humber 13.63 15.99 2.36   
Stat Neighbours 16.07 19.78 3.71   

Barnsley_ England Gap 37.52 35.56    

Barnsley 45.98 44.96 -1.02 151 150
Doncaster 30.72 50.80 20.08 149 151
Durham 8.16 7.34 -0.82 88 51
Halton 8.30 8.24 -0.06 91 73
Hartlepool 13.93 26.12 12.19 138 147
North East Lincs 16.71 17.20 0.49 143 138
Redcar & Cleveland 31.84 29.52 -2.32 150 149
Rotherham 20.19 17.17 -3.02 146 137
St. Helens 9.99 13.06 3.07 118 128
Wakefield 12.76 20.01 7.25 135 143
Wigan 8.08 8.34 0.26 84 77
Sheffield 18.75 18.59 -0.16 145 141

Average Number of Days Lost per Excluded Secondary Pupil

Days Lost per Pupil Rank
Area

2016 2017 16/17 Diff 2016 2017

England 4.50 4.47 -0.03   
Yorks & Humber 5.10 5.26 0.16   
Stat Neighbours 5.39 5.13 -0.26   

Barnsley_ England Gap 0.60 1.63    

Barnsley 5.10 6.10 1.00 123 147
Doncaster 5.60 5.88 0.28 138 142
Durham 5.50 5.22 -0.28 134 124
Halton 4.60 3.99 -0.61 101 48
Hartlepool 7.20 7.05 -0.15 151 151
North East Lincs 4.80 4.07 -0.73 109 58
Redcar & Cleveland 6.80 5.17 -1.63 149 122
Rotherham 5.50 5.33 -0.17 134 129
St. Helens 3.70 3.94 0.24 26 43
Wakefield 5.80 6.23 0.43 139 149
Wigan 4.40 4.45 0.05 87 90
Sheffield 4.40 4.81 0.41 87 113

Page 25



18

11.21 The average number of days lost per excluded pupil is also higher in Barnsley. In comparison 
to our Statistical Neighbours, Barnsley had the third highest figure in terms of the average 
number of days lost per excluded pupil in 2017, exceeded only by Hartlepool and Wakefield, 
and also saw the highest increase of all our Statistical Neighbours between 2016 and 2017.

11.22 In comparison to other South Yorkshire Local Authorities, Barnsley had the highest outcome in 
terms of the average number of days lost per excluded pupil in 2017.  

11.23 The average number of days lost per excluded pupil remains above the national average and 
the increase seen locally is in contrast to the decrease seen nationally and for our Statistical 
Neighbours. Although there was also an increase regionally, it was far less than the local 
increase.    

 
11.24 In comparison to all other Local Authorities in England, Barnsley Secondary Schools were 

ranked 147th in terms of the average number of days lost per excluded pupil in 2017, which is 
the worst position in the past five years.

12.0 Areas For Improvement

12.1 The following areas have been identified as priorities for improvement:

 Outcomes for boys at all phases of education
 Outcomes in reading, writing and maths at Key Stage 1
 Outcomes for disadvantaged (Pupil Premium) students
 Attainment 8 and Progress 8 scores at Key Stage 4  
 Rates of unauthorised absence from school
 Levels of exclusion from secondary schools

13.0 Elective Home Education (EHE)

13.1 All parents have a duty to ensure that their children receive an efficient, full time education 
suitable to their age, ability and aptitude, either by regular attendance at school or otherwise 
(under section 7 of the Education Act 1996). However, the law allows parents to educate their 
children at home instead of sending them to school.

13.2 Parents may decide to exercise their right to home educate their child from a very early age, 
so some children may never have been enrolled in school. Others are withdrawn from 
mainstream school at various stages up to the end of compulsory school age.

13.3 We want the home educated child to have a positive experience by developing productive and 
supportive working relationships with parents and by working together to ensure the best 
educational interests of the child. 

13.4 The breakdown of children and young people who are educated at home as of September 
2018 are shown in the table below. This equates to: 2 pupils of pre-school age; 83 of primary 
school age and 260 of secondary school age. In terms of the number of pupils per Key Stage 
(KS) this equates to: Pre School – 2 pupils; KS1 – 28 pupils; KS3 – 114 pupils and KS4 – 146 
pupils.

Page 26



19

Year Number of 
Group Pupils

Pre-School 2
Reception 6

1 11
2 11
3 18
4 11
5 8
6 18
7 27
8 40
9 47

10 48
11 98

Total 345

14.0 Improving Education Outcomes & Governance

14.1 Work to improve school quality and education outcomes is led through our sector-led school 
improvement partnership, The Barnsley Alliance.  

14.2 The Alliance oversees monitoring and risk assessment for all Barnsley schools, including 
maintained schools and academies, and all schools are assumed to be accountable to the 
Alliance for their quality and performance, and their contribution to overall outcomes for 
Barnsley schools.

14.3 Within the Alliance there are three sub-groups working to an agreed set of priorities, based on 
the areas identified for improvement.

14.4 The Achievement Group ensures that schools received the support they need in order to 
secure the required improvements in teaching and learning; leadership and management; and 
outcomes for pupils.  This is informed by detailed data analysis, discussions with school 
leaders, and a wide range of evaluation activities undertaken by local authority school 
evaluation officers and local school leaders. This group is responsible for:

 Individual risk assessment of all schools and academies
 Deployment of system leaders: specialist leaders of education (SLE); local leaders of 

education (LLE); national leaders of education (NLE); consultant headteachers (CHT) and 
LA EYFS consultants 

 Ongoing evaluation of support provided to schools
 Determine the training and development required to address borough wide priorities

14.5 The Narrowing the Gap Group focuses on outcomes for particular groups of students where 
performance is a concern, particularly pupil premium (disadvantaged pupils). It also maintains 
oversight of attendance and exclusions.  This group’s priorities include:

  
 Reducing levels of absence from school, particularly days lost through unauthorised 

absence
 Reducing exclusions from school
 Reducing the gap in outcomes between disadvantaged and non-disadvantaged pupils

Page 27



20

14.6 The Leadership Group has oversight of development and support for good leadership at all 
levels in schools, including governance.  This group’s priorities include:

               
 Developing Early Years Foundation Stage leaders
 Improving leadership of SEND and supporting implementation of SEND reviews in schools
 Leadership development programme for new headteachers in primary and secondary 

schools
 Providing a professional development network for all primary heads 
 Developing leadership at all levels in schools

14.7 In addition there is a SEND Programme Board that is working to improve outcomes for 
children and young people with special educational needs and disabilities.  The improvement 
priorities include:

 Building capacity and expertise in mainstream early years settings and schools to meet the 
needs of children and young people with SEND

 Improving the Education Health and Care Planning process to ensure children’s health, 
wellbeing and learning needs are appropriately supported

 Developing participating and co-production to ensure children, young people, their parents 
and carers influence planning for special needs at a strategic and individual level

 Developing local specialist provision in education and health to ensure children can access 
the right education and other services they need locally

 Improving pathways to adulthood, supporting young people into further education, training 
and employment,  and in leading as independent a life as possible within their own families 
and communities

14.8 The local authority currently maintains a team of 2.5 full time equivalent School Improvement 
and Evaluation Officers, to discharge the council’s statutory school improvement functions and 
support the work of the sector-led Barnsley Alliance Partnership.

14.9 Governing Bodies of maintained schools and governors or directors of academy trusts are 
responsible and accountable for performance, standards and quality in the schools they 
manage.  Governors of maintained schools are accountable to the local authority while 
Academy Trusts are accountable to the DfE through the regional or national school 
commissioners.

14.10 Within our sector-led improvement model the local school sector provides the capacity for 
school improvement activity through Teaching School Alliances, and the deployment of 
National Leaders of Education (NLE); Local Leaders of Education (LLE) and Specialist 
Leaders of Education (SLE), as well as through a range of professional development events.   
The local authority, as a partner within the Alliance, works to shape and influence borough-
wide school improvement planning and activity.

15.0 Invited Witnesses

15.1 The following witnesses have been invited to today’s meeting to answer questions from the 
committee:

 Nick Bowen, Principal of Horizon Community College and Joint Chair of Barnsley Schools’ 
Alliance Board

 Margaret Libreri, Service Director, Education, Early Start and Prevention, People 
Directorate, BMBC

 Richard Lynch, Head of Barnsley Schools’ Alliance, People Directorate, BMBC

Page 28



21

 Liz Gibson, Virtual School Headteacher for Looked After Children (LAC), People 
Directorate, BMBC

 Councillor Sarah Tattersall, Cabinet Support Member for People (Achieving Potential)

16.0 Possible Areas for Investigation

16.1 Members may wish to ask questions around the following areas:

 What good practice can be taken from schools who are bucking the trends and replicated 
at schools that are not performing so well?

 Given the exceptional Early Years Provision in Barnsley, why aren’t more children 
achieving a Good Level of Development?

 For schools that are not broadly in line with, or above, the national average, what is 
considered an unacceptable level of performance and what is done to challenge and 
improve performance at those schools?

 How do you plan to reduce the literacy gaps, particularly at Key Stage 1?

 How would you know if schools were using exclusions tactically, or ‘off-rolling’ students, to 
boost their performance?

 What needs to be done to improve attainment at secondary schools beyond ‘the basics’ 
(English language/literature and maths)?

 Given that the majority of LAC are behind their peers by the time they leave primary school, 
what is planned to help those who are not progressing as well as they could, to achieve 
their full potential?

 What causes a child to be permanently excluded from primary school and what has 
changed so much in the last few years to affect the ranking?

 What percentage of exclusions relate to SEND children?

 How do you determine whether the Barnsley Alliance is effective, adding value and 
constantly fit for purpose?

 What can members do to help improve educational outcomes for children and young 
people in Barnsley?

17.0 Background Papers and Links

 The National Curriculum: https://www.gov.uk/national-curriculum/overview 

18.0 Glossary

ALPS A Level Points Score
BMBC Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council
CLA or LAC Children Looked After or Looked After Children
CPD Continuing Professional Development
DfE Department for Education

Page 29

https://www.gov.uk/national-curriculum/overview


22

EAL English as an Additional Language
EHCP Education, Health & Care Plan
EYFS Early Years Foundation Stage
GCSE General Certificate in Education
GLD Good Level of Development
KS Key Stage
LA Local Authority
LEA Local Education Authority
OOA Out of Area
SEN(D) Special Education Needs (& Disability)
SFR Statistical First Release

19.0 Officer Contact

Anna Marshall, Scrutiny Officer, 21st January 2019

Page 30


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Provisional Education Outcomes for Children & Young People in Barnsley 2018

